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              1            MR. SELTZER:  Folks, I think we'll get 
  
              2  started now.  Good evening, my name is Bill 
  
              3  Seltzer, I'm an attorney with the Environmental 
  
              4  Protection Agency.  This hearing tonight is in 
  
              5  regard to the proposed issuance of the state 
  
              6  construction permit for Genpower, West Frankfort, 
  
              7  L.L.C in West Frankfort Township.  I have been 
  
              8  asked by the agency to be a hearing officer for 
  
              9  tonight's hearing.  With me are some other 
  
             10  individuals from the IEPA, they will introduce 
  
             11  themselves. 
  
             12            The way we will proceed tonight is I'll 
  
             13  ask everybody present to sign a registration card 
  
             14  and on the card you can indicate whether or not you 
  
             15  wish to testify or ask questions.  Also as long as 
  
             16  we have your name and address, eventually we will 
  
             17  have what is called a responsiveness summary, 
  
             18  summarize everything that is transpired, everything 
  
             19  in the record and that will be mailed out to 
  
             20  everybody that signed one of these cards, gave us 
  
             21  your name and address. 
  
             22            The way we will proceed tonight, we don't 
  
             23  have too many people here, IEPA personnel will 
  
             24  introduce themselves, state what their position is 
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              1  with the IEPA, then we will make a short 
  
              2  presentation.  I'm going to ask if there is anybody 
  
              3  present representing the applicant that they 
  
              4  introduce themselves for the record.  After the 
  
              5  EPA's presentation is complete, we will ask if the 
  
              6  applicant wishes to make a presentation, if they 
  
              7  do, they will make their presentation and then 
  
              8  after them, we will go to your comments and 
  
              9  questions.  If they do not wish to make a 
  
             10  presentation, we will go right to your comments and 
  
             11  questions. 
  
             12            The record in this proceeding is set 
  
             13  right now to stay open -- to close July 21 of this 
  
             14  year which means you can -- anything submitted in 
  
             15  written form that is postmarked by midnight July 21 
  
             16  will become part of the official record.  We do 
  
             17  have some forms up there you can use to submit your 
  
             18  written submissions on.  If you don't wish to use 
  
             19  those forms, at least they give you the address and 
  
             20  the person who should receive your written 
  
             21  comments.  Before we go any further, I will ask if 
  
             22  there are any questions as to how we will proceed? 
  
             23  Indicate for the record there are no questions so 
  
             24  we will start now by introducing the other folks 
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              1  that are present this evening from the IEPA. 
  
              2            MR. ROMAINE:  I am Chris Romaine, I am 
  
              3  manager of the utility unit in the air permit 
  
              4  section and Youra Benofamil is here with me. 
  
              5            MR. BENOFAMIL:  I am Youra Benofamil, I'm 
  
              6  permit engineer at Bureau of Air, I work with 
  
              7  Mr. Romaine and he's my manager. 
  
              8            MR. FROST:  I am Brad Frost, I am in the 
  
              9  Office of Community Relations and I work for the 
  
             10  Bureau of Air. 
  
             11            MR. SELTZER:  Ask now if there is anybody 
  
             12  present representing the applicant this evening? 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  My name is Ken Milne, I'm 
  
             14  with Genpower, Boston based developer of power 
  
             15  plants.  This is Mike Donohoe who is a consultant 
  
             16  with Pickery.  Mike, I will let you finish your own 
  
             17  introduction. 
  
             18            MR. DONOHOE:  My name is Mike Donohoe 
  
             19  with Pickery Consultants in Memphis, Tennessee, we 
  
             20  been working with Genpower on the air permitting 
  
             21  package that will probably be discussed tonight. 
  
             22            MR. BENOFAMIL:  Thank you all for coming 
  
             23  this evening.  Good evening ladies and gentlemen. 
  
             24  I am Youra Benofamil, I am a permit engineer in the 
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              1  Bureau of Air.  I would like to present to you a 
  
              2  brief description of the project.  Genpower West 
  
              3  Frankfort, L.L.C has requested a construction 
  
              4  permit for an electric power plant in Franklin 
  
              5  County.  The project would be located at Woods 
  
              6  Road, east of city limits of West Frankfort in West 
  
              7  Frankfort Township. 
  
              8            The proposed facility is designed to 
  
              9  function as a peaking power station, to generate 
  
             10  electricity in peak demand periods and at other 
  
             11  times when other power plants are not available due 
  
             12  to scheduled or unexpected outages.  Operation of 
  
             13  the facility may occur throughout the year, 
  
             14  although the facility is expected to run primarily 
  
             15  in the summer months.  The proposed facility would 
  
             16  use up to four combustion turbines to generate up 
  
             17  to about 320 megawatts of electricity.  Each 
  
             18  turbine will have a nominal capacity of about 80 
  
             19  megawatts.  A generator connected to the shaft of 
  
             20  each turbine produces electrical power. 
  
             21            The facility will only burn natural gas 
  
             22  which is the cleanest commercially available fuel. 
  
             23  Natural gas does not contain significant amount of 
  
             24  sulfur or ash as present in oil and coal.  The 
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              1  principal air contaminants emitted from the 
  
              2  turbines would be nitrogen oxide and carbon 
  
              3  monoxide.  Nitrogen oxide is formed when nitrogen 
  
              4  and oxygen in the atmosphere combine during the 
  
              5  high temperature of combustion.  The nitrogen oxide 
  
              6  emission from all the proposed turbines will be 
  
              7  controlled with modern combustors.  The application 
  
              8  indicates maximum nitrogen oxide emissions of nine 
  
              9  parts per million on hourly basis from all the 
  
             10  turbines. 
  
             11            Carbon monoxide is formed by the 
  
             12  incomplete combustion of fuel.  Carbon monoxide is 
  
             13  associated with most combustion processes and is 
  
             14  found in measurable amounts in turbine exhaust. 
  
             15  Volatile organic material and particulate matter 
  
             16  are also emitted as a result of incomplete 
  
             17  combustion.  Emissions of these pollutants would 
  
             18  also be minimized by the modern combustors with 
  
             19  which the turbines would be equipped.  Sulfur 
  
             20  dioxide is found only in small amounts from the 
  
             21  combustion of natural gas. 
  
             22            The project is not considered a major 
  
             23  source because the permitted emissions of 
  
             24  pollutants from this facility would be less than 
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              1  the major source threshold.  For projects that are 
  
              2  not major, an air quality study is not required by 
  
              3  applicable rules.  However Genpower West Frankfort, 
  
              4  L.L.C has performed an air quality study to 
  
              5  determine the air quality impacts from the project 
  
              6  for criteria pollutants other than ozone. 
  
              7            The analysis shows that the proposed 
  
              8  facility would not significantly affect ambient air 
  
              9  quality in the vicinity of the facility.  This is 
  
             10  consistent with the Illinois EPA's experience with 
  
             11  other new natural gas fired power plants.  In 
  
             12  summary, the Illinois EPA has reviewed the 
  
             13  materials submitted by Genpower West Frankfort, 
  
             14  L.L.C and has determined that the application for 
  
             15  the project shows that it will comply with 
  
             16  applicable state and federal standards. 
  
             17            We have prepared a draft permit for 
  
             18  construction of this power plant that sets out the 
  
             19  conditions that we propose to place on the facility 
  
             20  to assure continuing compliance.  In closing we 
  
             21  welcome any comments or questions on our proposed 
  
             22  action.  Thank you very much. 
  
             23            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you very much.  Let 
  
             24  me ask if either the gentlemen from the applicant 
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              1  wish to make a presentation? 
  
              2            MR. MILNE:  I'd like to make a brief 
  
              3  statement.  Again my name is Ken Milne, Genpower 
  
              4  which is the name of our company is based just 
  
              5  outside of Boston, Massachusetts and I'll just give 
  
              6  you a little bit of background on us and who we 
  
              7  are, we have developed power plants in Maine, 
  
              8  Arkansas, Mississippi, those are either in 
  
              9  construction or have gone into operation, we have 
  
             10  other projects throughout the southeast.  This is 
  
             11  our only project in Illinois. 
  
             12            We have found that other communities 
  
             13  where we have developed power plants have benefited 
  
             14  from both the construction process when the workers 
  
             15  are there putting the plant up and from the 
  
             16  operation of the plant which results in some jobs 
  
             17  but mainly it's a significant increase in helping 
  
             18  the tax base of the community.  Our anticipation is 
  
             19  that a project here would help the tax base in 
  
             20  Franklin County. 
  
             21            Just a few words about the plant itself, 
  
             22  most of the details were covered by the EPA, we 
  
             23  intend if schedules go the way we think now the 
  
             24  plant would be on line sometime in the summer of 
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              1  2003 so approximately this time two years from 
  
              2  now.  The construction process takes four to six 
  
              3  months so we would probably begin construction in 
  
              4  late 2002 or the beginning of 2003.  If you have 
  
              5  any other questions, I am happy to entertain them, 
  
              6  myself and Mr. Donohoe will be here for the entire 
  
              7  meeting. 
  
              8             MR. SELTZER:  We will go to the audience 
  
              9  now, so far there's only -- the only card I have 
  
             10  indicating that anybody would like to ask questions 
  
             11  or offer comments are from Kevin and Ida Ellen 
  
             12  Ross.  Would you identify yourself for the record? 
  
             13            MR. ROSS:  My name is Kevin Ross, the 
  
             14  question I have if this proposed plant goes in, so 
  
             15  far we been told that there was one turbine that 
  
             16  was going to be put in originally and now as I can 
  
             17  read through this, it shows for four and we have 
  
             18  basically had no insight as to how much space this 
  
             19  is going to take up, what the noise emissions and 
  
             20  how much actual activity this plant could have, has 
  
             21  anybody got any idea as far as the concerns for 
  
             22  that? 
  
             23            MR. SELTZER:  Will the applicant care to 
  
             24  address that? 
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              1            MR. MILNE:  The plant will be located on 
  
              2  a 38 acre parcel that is boarded by Woods Road and 
  
              3  Doris Road.  The actual facility will occupy space 
  
              4  that is approximately 12 to 15 acres of that 38 
  
              5  acre parcel.  I am sorry you had information 
  
              6  stating it would be one turbine, our planning has 
  
              7  always been the plant would be constructed with 
  
              8  four turbines. 
  
              9            As far as noise is concerned, we have had 
  
             10  a noise study done, we have tried to model the 
  
             11  effect of the noise on the nearest neighbors and 
  
             12  what are called the nearest receptor, other than 
  
             13  the property owner, Mr. Wall, who may move from the 
  
             14  sight when the plant is built, the nearest neighbor 
  
             15  has been determined to be approximately 1,450 feet 
  
             16  from what is called the acoustic center of the 
  
             17  plant for modeling purposes and our sound engineer 
  
             18  has told us that when the plant is operating, the 
  
             19  approximate sound level at that nearest neighbor in 
  
             20  decibals which is how sound is measured would be 
  
             21  approximately 51 decibals and to put that into 
  
             22  terms you can all understand, that's about the 
  
             23  noise level of a dishwasher being heard from one 
  
             24  room away. 
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              1            I have some more information on 
  
              2  comparative sound levels with me, just a simple 
  
              3  chart that shows what decibal levels correspond to 
  
              4  common sounds.  I have enough of them, I can give 
  
              5  you each one before you leave, you can also contact 
  
              6  me if anybody would be really interested and like 
  
              7  to see the report from our noise engineer, I can 
  
              8  get you that also. 
  
              9            MR. SELTZER:  Are you through, Mr. Ross? 
  
             10            MR. ROSS:  Yes. 
  
             11            MR. SELTZER:  Mrs. Ross, do you have any 
  
             12  questions? 
  
             13            MRS. ROSS:  No. 
  
             14            MR. SELTZER:  Will you identify yourself 
  
             15  for the record and spell your last name, please. 
  
             16            MR. BROWNING:  Randy Browning, 
  
             17  B-r-o-w-n-i-n-g.  You are talking -- referring to 
  
             18  noise to a dishwasher, is that being outside or the 
  
             19  things are running, my house is shut up, I'm 
  
             20  inside, elaborate a little bit on that. 
  
             21            MR. MILNE:  The best analogy I have is if 
  
             22  you were inside your house and a dishwasher was 
  
             23  running in the next room and of course there are 
  
             24  all makes and models of dishwashers and levels of 
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              1  sound, insulation inside a house, it's very 
  
              2  approximate, I am just trying to give you an idea 
  
              3  of approximately where it is, it's not as quiet as, 
  
              4  you know, the nighttime environment you experience 
  
              5  now but it's not as loud as being next to a jet 
  
              6  airport either so it's an inexact way of doing it, 
  
              7  I realize that but it's the closest analogy I can 
  
              8  give you right now. 
  
              9            MR. ROMAINE:  I think your question was, 
  
             10  was this what you would be hearing when you are 
  
             11  inside your home, when you are outside your home so 
  
             12  I believe the analogy you are getting is this what 
  
             13  you feel in your backyard at a barbecue, is this 
  
             14  modeling without any consideration for any 
  
             15  additional sound dampening that would occur from 
  
             16  being inside? 
  
             17            MR. MILNE:  Yes, if you were -- I guess 
  
             18  that would be the answer if you were outside. 
  
             19  Another approximate way to think about the sound, 
  
             20  if you go to the substation itself 51 db is about 
  
             21  the sound of a large transformer that are already 
  
             22  at the substation heard from a distance of a 
  
             23  hundred feet.  Now, of course the nature of the 
  
             24  sound will be a little bit different, the frequency 
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              1  might be a little bit different but the overall 
  
              2  level of the sound is approximately that of a large 
  
              3  transformer and there are large transformers at the 
  
              4  substation now. 
  
              5            MR. BROWNING:  So you are saying it's 51 
  
              6  is what the noise coming off of that now? 
  
              7            MR. MILNE:  The nearest neighbor other 
  
              8  than Mr. Wall, the property owner would be subject 
  
              9  to a sound level of about 51 db is what our 
  
             10  modeling shows, that's approximately the sound of a 
  
             11  large transformer at a hundred feet.  As you get 
  
             12  further away, the sound levels decrease because 
  
             13  sound is very dependent on the distance you are 
  
             14  from the source, that is the sound level at the 
  
             15  nearest neighbor. 
  
             16            MR. BROWNING:  Is there one around a guy 
  
             17  could go hear, is anyone else aware of, is there 
  
             18  one somewhere a guy could hear? 
  
             19            MR. MILNE:  A plant like this I am sure 
  
             20  there are but I couldn't give you directions to 
  
             21  tell you exactly where they are, there is a fairly 
  
             22  common configuration for peaking power plant.  I 
  
             23  believe there might be one in Clay County. 
  
             24            MR. ROMAINE:  I have a list of other 
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              1  recent proposals and going through the ones that 
  
              2  are in operation, I guess I would comment first 
  
              3  this is a peaking power plant which means that it 
  
              4  only operates when there is demand for the power, 
  
              5  that means I wouldn't go visit a facility without 
  
              6  checking first whether they're operating because if 
  
              7  you make a special effort to go there, the way 
  
              8  things go would suggest you will go when it's not 
  
              9  operating.  We have new facilities that are 
  
             10  operating in Kinmundy.  There's one turbine that 
  
             11  could be operating in St. Elmo.  Reliant Energy has 
  
             12  developed a new facility in Seagull in Shelby 
  
             13  County that has eight smaller turbines.  Ameron has 
  
             14  put a facility in Pinckneyville.  They also put a 
  
             15  facility in Gibson City.  If you're heading down 
  
             16  toward Jappa, Midwest Electric has added five new 
  
             17  turbines to its facility.  Those are sort of the 
  
             18  facilities in Southern Illinois that might be 
  
             19  possible to visit to see what one of these 
  
             20  facilities might sound like.  Obviously each of 
  
             21  these facilities is different in terms of the 
  
             22  turbines they have installed, where they are 
  
             23  located, what sound muffling they have designed 
  
             24  into the facility.  The decision of how quiet one 
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              1  of these facilities is really a determining part by 
  
              2  how large the parcel of property is, how close the 
  
              3  nearest neighbor is.  I would certainly expect for 
  
              4  example that the turbines at the existing electric 
  
              5  energy power plant in Jappa given their siting 
  
              6  would be much noisier than would be possible for 
  
              7  the proposed facility so I imagine that what I have 
  
              8  said is Reliant Energy in Shelby County probably 
  
              9  the closest facility then? 
  
             10            AUDIENCE:  Pinckneyville. 
  
             11            MR. ROMAINE:  Those are two possibilities 
  
             12  then. 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  Can I make a further 
  
             14  comment?  There are Illinois requirements as to how 
  
             15  much noise an industrial facility could put out. 
  
             16  We are aware of those requirements and we have done 
  
             17  the modeling based on a level of sound damping that 
  
             18  would put us within the Illinois noise requirements 
  
             19  and so and these are G.E. Turbines, they call it 
  
             20  level 3 sound damping, that is close to level 1, 2 
  
             21  and 3 so we put in an amount of sound damping that 
  
             22  would make us comply, allow us to comply with the 
  
             23  Illinois requirements. 
  
             24            MR. BROWNING:  Do you anticipate running 
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              1  like when this thing kicks on all four of these be 
  
              2  running or at times one or two be running? 
  
              3            MR. MILNE:  Probably be running groups of 
  
              4  two or four, it's hard to say, it depends on what 
  
              5  the power market is, how often it's needed at any 
  
              6  particular time. 
  
              7            MR. ROMAINE:  Can I interject here, it's 
  
              8  been indicated Illinois does have regulations that 
  
              9  address noise, we have had people comment that they 
  
             10  think they are probably more stringent noise 
  
             11  regulations that states have, they are developed to 
  
             12  protect against nuisance noise, it really addresses 
  
             13  both daytime and nighttime levels.  The daytime 
  
             14  levels protect against nuisances when you are doing 
  
             15  normal activities during the daytime.  The 
  
             16  nighttime noise levels are much more stringent to 
  
             17  protect against interfering with a person's sleep 
  
             18  and it does address an impact with industrial 
  
             19  facility either to commercial property, to another 
  
             20  industrial facility, to a residential facility. 
  
             21            MR. SELTZER:  Let me add, it's more 
  
             22  stringent too, in other words an emitter can emit 
  
             23  more noise to another commercial facility in 
  
             24  Illinois than they can to a residential.  Now 
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              1  something you asked before where the noise is 
  
              2  received is heard inside or outside, it's always 
  
              3  measured outside, never inside because the concern 
  
              4  is what will you hear when your windows are open. 
  
              5  Obviously everybody's house is insulated 
  
              6  differently but we take our measurements on the 
  
              7  outside so the receiver, the noise has to meet a 
  
              8  certain level from the outside of the property and 
  
              9  at night it has to meet the most stringent level 
  
             10  with the receiving residents.  I am just wondering 
  
             11  Mr. Wall apparently lives closer than the models 
  
             12  you have done, you may have done -- 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  We have remodeled his house. 
  
             14            MR. SELTZER:  Is he the landowner then or 
  
             15  you have an option to purchase? 
  
             16            MR. MILNE:  Yes, we do. 
  
             17            MR. SELTZER:  I don't know if your 
  
             18  modeling shows it but obviously it shows that right 
  
             19  now would be a violation at Mr. Walls house and he 
  
             20  is going to move and somebody else purchase that 
  
             21  house, they are of course entitled to the same 
  
             22  protection. 
  
             23            MR. MILNE:  We would buy his house and 
  
             24  the remaining property in that case. 
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              1            MR. SELTZER:  One other quick follow up 
  
              2  question, Mr. Ross has something I think at the end 
  
              3  of his questions, I think he was asking something 
  
              4  along the line of how many people would be employed 
  
              5  once you are up and operating. 
  
              6            MR. MILNE:  I would say three to four. 
  
              7            MRS. ROSS:  Ida Ellen Ross, will they be 
  
              8  local people that are employed? 
  
              9            MR. MILNE:  It's possible that some could 
  
             10  be, I don't know the answer to that. 
  
             11            MR. SELTZER:  Are there any other 
  
             12  questions? 
  
             13            MR. BROWNING:  Besides the noise level, I 
  
             14  know this will be a power plant, I live within a 
  
             15  half of mile of the ones there now from where you 
  
             16  are proposing putting this peaking plant, little 
  
             17  over a quarter, will I receive any interruptions 
  
             18  for like TV, radio something like this, any 
  
             19  different than from what I already have? 
  
             20            MR. MILNE:  I can't answer that as an 
  
             21  expert, I don't believe so, I haven't heard of that 
  
             22  occurring in any of our other projects. 
  
             23            MR. BROWNING:  On the structure you are 
  
             24  proposing, what actually will be there, I mean I 
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              1  suppose building the turbine, are you going to have 
  
              2  a coolant pond or anything like that? 
  
              3            MR. MILNE:  Four turbines, four stacks 
  
              4  and generators, basically a small building or two. 
  
              5            MRS. ROSS:  Will there be any type of 
  
              6  smell when these turbines are working, any kind of 
  
              7  odors? 
  
              8            MR. MILNE:  I guess I have to defer to 
  
              9  the EPA on that. 
  
             10            MR. ROMAINE:  We have never experienced 
  
             11  odors, there is no reason for there to be odors, 
  
             12  simbly burning natural gas, the same fuel that you 
  
             13  use in your home, it's a very low ash burn. 
  
             14            MR. ROSS:  Then extremely high 
  
             15  temperature? 
  
             16            MR. ROMAINE:  Yes. 
  
             17            MR. BROWNING:  You get the thing up and 
  
             18  running and the neighbors aren't comfortable with 
  
             19  the noise, there is alternative things that can be 
  
             20  done, I mean you guys don't have to to a certain 
  
             21  extent but if the neighbor is upset with it whether 
  
             22  it's quiet, do you have things that can be done? 
  
             23            MR. MILNE:  From a technical standpoint, 
  
             24  yeah, things can be done, further sound damping can 
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              1  be put in the stacks, for example there is a 
  
              2  technical recourse. 
  
              3            MR. BROWNING:  That is the only -- the 
  
              4  old coal mine was out there (inaudible).  As far as 
  
              5  the noise levels though like I said if the people 
  
              6  are less than pleased with the noise that is coming 
  
              7  out there, is some things that can be done, I 
  
              8  understand you don't have to, if the neighbors 
  
              9  aren't happy, it's not a good environment all the 
  
             10  way around.  I know you can't be overboard one way 
  
             11  or the other.  I said it's been awful pleasant 
  
             12  living out there since that old blower off that 
  
             13  mine is not running, I really have some concerns, I 
  
             14  wish you could relate a little better if I am 
  
             15  sitting out in my yard how is it going to be, can 
  
             16  you relate anything a little more than what you are 
  
             17  talking about there? 
  
             18            MR. MILNE:  I think the best answer I can 
  
             19  give you right now would be to go to the 
  
             20  substation, stand pretty close to it, figure out 
  
             21  you are a hundred feet from one of those canisters 
  
             22  that are transformers and that would be the sound 
  
             23  approximately a quarter of a mile away. 
  
             24            MR. BROWNING:  If I was standing right 
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              1  next to it. 
  
              2            MR. MILNE:  If you're a hundred feet from 
  
              3  one of those big transformers roughly, that would 
  
              4  be the equivalent of what the plant sounds like 
  
              5  roughly a quarter of a mile and please understand 
  
              6  this is all roughly, I am just trying to give you a 
  
              7  general idea, can't be anymore exact about it. 
  
              8            MR. ROSS:  You are saying all four 
  
              9  turbines at the same time? 
  
             10            MR. MILNE:  Yes, all four. 
  
             11            MR. BROWNING:  You are running those four 
  
             12  months out of the year or somewhere about? 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  It all depends, the economics 
  
             14  of this are somewhat complicated, it might be that 
  
             15  they run a very low percentage one year and a 
  
             16  higher percentage the following year.  I believe we 
  
             17  will be limited to the number of hours that we can 
  
             18  operate in any year based on the permit that's 
  
             19  being issued to us so it's not a situation where 
  
             20  they would be allowed to run year round.  Our 
  
             21  anticipation is for a plant like this, typically it 
  
             22  runs during daylight hours during the hottest 
  
             23  months and once in a while during, you know, winter 
  
             24  peak when there's high electrical usage and other 
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              1  plants not be operated. 
  
              2            MR. BROWNING:  The type of noise we are 
  
              3  going to be hearing, I mean is it like an intake 
  
              4  like an air suction, exhaust I assume probably not 
  
              5  be the problem, be the intake; is that correct? 
  
              6            MR. MILNE:  I can answer that question 
  
              7  but I would need to go back and look at the details 
  
              8  from my noise study to tell you what the exact 
  
              9  source would be so if you would give me your 
  
             10  address, I will be happy to send you some 
  
             11  information on that before you go tonight, okay? 
  
             12            MR. ROMAINE:  Add some comments, in terms 
  
             13  of the noise issue, I have visited a couple of 
  
             14  these facilities and they are compared to what you 
  
             15  might expect amazingly quiet.  If you want to hear 
  
             16  them when you are driving by, you will have to turn 
  
             17  off your car, you can be walking fairly close to 
  
             18  them and carry a conversation on with somebody.  If 
  
             19  you get close to them, I'd say it's an engine type 
  
             20  noise.  If you walk around the engine close up, you 
  
             21  may in fact hear different components of the noise, 
  
             22  it isn't just one loud noise, if you're near the 
  
             23  intake, you may hear the intake noise a little bit 
  
             24  more, if you're near the exhaust, you may hear the 
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              1  exhaust more so in that sense there are definable 
  
              2  noises that are associated with them but overall 
  
              3  given the types of sound damping that can be used, 
  
              4  they are in fact amazingly quiet and if there are 
  
              5  other sources of noise in the area, you do have to 
  
              6  specifically get very close to them and realize 
  
              7  that you are hearing the noise of the turbines.  If 
  
              8  you're, in terms of facilities I have visited, 
  
              9  couple hundred feet away, if there are other cars 
  
             10  moving by or wind moving in vegitation, you are not 
  
             11  aware that the turbine itself is on. 
  
             12            MR. BROWNING:  As a neighbor to one of 
  
             13  these, will there be any other side effects that we 
  
             14  are not aware of? 
  
             15            MR. ROMAINE:  In terms of the noise, my 
  
             16  comment would be that you need to work with 
  
             17  Genpower to make sure that testing for noise is 
  
             18  part of the initial startup of the facility to make 
  
             19  sure that the initial sound damping is performed as 
  
             20  expected so that if there are problems with the 
  
             21  sound dampening that they can be corrected up front 
  
             22  without having to wait until a later complaint. 
  
             23  The question was asked about noise, I believe this 
  
             24  permit allows something about a quarter of the year 
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              1  to be operated, that doesn't mean that they have to 
  
              2  operate a quarter of the year as is indicated, they 
  
              3  would operate -- we would expect they would operate 
  
              4  when there is demand for their power.  Looking at 
  
              5  other new peaking facilities, they operate I guess 
  
              6  last year maybe a couple hundred hours depends on 
  
              7  where they are located, the facilities in the urban 
  
              8  area tend to operate more than the facilities in 
  
              9  the less developed areas. 
  
             10            In terms of other impacts of the 
  
             11  facility, what our permit addresses is the emission 
  
             12  the air quality impacts.  As Youra has indicated, 
  
             13  this facility readily complies with applicable 
  
             14  mission standards, the disbursion modeling has been 
  
             15  performed indicates that this facility would not 
  
             16  have a significant effect on ambient air quality, 
  
             17  basically what that means is the air quality would 
  
             18  be essentially the way it is today, you would not 
  
             19  notice any difference and this is a common 
  
             20  consequence of really two things, first off, the 
  
             21  levels of emissions coming off the stack are very 
  
             22  low, this is burning natural gas, very clean fuel, 
  
             23  these are modern turbines, they burn that fuel very 
  
             24  efficiently to generate very low levels of 
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              1  pollutants in the exhaust and then turbines have 
  
              2  excellent disbursion.  They shoot the exhaust 
  
              3  straight up, it's hot, it goes up fairly high and 
  
              4  it disburses so there are not again large impacts 
  
              5  on the ambient air quality. 
  
              6            In terms of issuance, really to make sure 
  
              7  that the facility is developed and minimize the 
  
              8  impact on nearby neighbors, certainly sound 
  
              9  packaging, this sound modeling up front to make 
  
             10  sure they select the correct level of sound 
  
             11  dampening initially is very key part of that design 
  
             12  in terms of minimizing impact on neighbors.  I 
  
             13  assume is level 3 the most stringent? 
  
             14            MR. MILNE:  You always can put some more 
  
             15  muffling in the engine. 
  
             16            MR. ROMAINE:  Would level 4 be the next? 
  
             17            MR. MILNE:  Yes. 
  
             18            MR. ROMAINE:  To make that decision, is 
  
             19  it appropriate to use a level 4 sound dampening 
  
             20  package, it's much easier to make that decision as 
  
             21  part of the initial construction of the facility 
  
             22  and not have to come in and say well, we're going 
  
             23  to have to upgrade from a level 3 to a level 4.  To 
  
             24  date we have not had complaints about noise from 
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              1  these types of facilities and developers seem to be 
  
              2  taking their responsibility very carefully to make 
  
              3  sure they put in the correct sound dampening 
  
              4  package up front. 
  
              5            MR. SELTZER:  I would add too just -- 
  
              6  years ago I was involved in prosecuting some noise 
  
              7  violation cases and it's to the applicant's benefit 
  
              8  to get as much noise attenuation as needed or as 
  
              9  possible early up front because if they have to 
  
             10  retroject, they know this, after they're built, 
  
             11  it's going to be much more expensive for them, it's 
  
             12  an economic benefit to them to go ahead and get as 
  
             13  much noise attenuation as reasonable at this point 
  
             14  rather than down the road if in fact there's 
  
             15  complaints. 
  
             16            MR. BROWNING:  Keith Browning, will there 
  
             17  be an employee at the sight 24 hours a day? 
  
             18            MR. MILNE:  Not necessarily. 
  
             19            MR. BROWNING:  Normal business hours 
  
             20  probably, not all the time? 
  
             21            MR. MILNE:  When it's operating, there 
  
             22  most likely will be people there.  It is 
  
             23  possible -- it's not our intent right now but it is 
  
             24  possible for plants like this to operate remotely 
  
                                                                 26 
  
  
  
  



  



  
  
  
  
              1  where there is not someone there at all times. 
  
              2            MR. BROWNING:  Automatically kick on? 
  
              3            MR. MILNE:  That's right, it's not 
  
              4  automatic but it's turned on from a remote location 
  
              5  so that a central location can monitor and dispatch 
  
              6  the plants, not necessarily the way we operate this 
  
              7  plant but to answer your question no, it's not 
  
              8  necessarily true that there will be somebody there 
  
              9  24 hours a day 365. 
  
             10            MR. BROWNING:  Another question, is there 
  
             11  any kind of a waste product that will run off from 
  
             12  it? 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  There will be oils at the 
  
             14  plant, for example there will be -- we will use 
  
             15  some water to treat the intake on the hot days we 
  
             16  cool the air intake so we will use some water but 
  
             17  we anticipate that those will all be contained 
  
             18  within the confines of the plant and disposed of 
  
             19  and not -- if your question is just to run off into 
  
             20  the outside confines of the property, no. 
  
             21            MR. ROMAINE:  That is my experience as 
  
             22  well, these facilities are developed with concrete 
  
             23  basins under any of the components that could catch 
  
             24  anything that might spill. 
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              1            MRS. ROSS:  So it won't contaminate any 
  
              2  of our water works or anything, what happens if 
  
              3  there is a problem at the plant, who would they 
  
              4  contact or who would -- how would a person be 
  
              5  contacted that would have to fix it? 
  
              6            MR. MILNE:  Typically we would have 
  
              7  maintenance crews who would visit the site to 
  
              8  either do normal maintenance or correct problems in 
  
              9  case of emergencies. 
  
             10            MRS. ROSS:  Will there be a local 
  
             11  person? 
  
             12            MR. MILNE:  If a plant like this would be 
  
             13  operated remotely, there are devices at the plant 
  
             14  which would tell those operators that something 
  
             15  isn't working correctly. 
  
             16            MR. SELTZER:  A question that occurred to 
  
             17  me I never thought of before, in our permit do we 
  
             18  have to ask the applicant to specify a person to 
  
             19  contact in case there is a problem and if so then 
  
             20  do we identify that person in our permit? 
  
             21            MR. ROMAINE:  That isn't something we do 
  
             22  in the construction permit phase, that is something 
  
             23  that would be dealt with in the operating permit. 
  
             24            MR. SELTZER:  So it would be in the 
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              1  operating permit? 
  
              2            MR. ROMAINE:  I don't think we usually 
  
              3  put that person in the permit. 
  
              4            MR. SELTZER:  Or that position with a 
  
              5  phone number, do we do that? 
  
              6            MR. ROMAINE:  We do not, no, if something 
  
              7  was to be done, if the facility was proposed to a 
  
              8  particular risk for a facility of this type -- I 
  
              9  guess two comments for a person to be at the site 
  
             10  is almost no different than if the person is not at 
  
             11  the site.  They are going to be off sitting in a 
  
             12  control room in a trailer somewhere operating the 
  
             13  facility looking at a computer screen.  For modern 
  
             14  equipment of this type, they can do that just as 
  
             15  well at a site that is 100 miles away, 50 miles 
  
             16  away or maybe even Boston, I don't know.  What they 
  
             17  do need though is to have people that can come and 
  
             18  correct problems once they are identified and those 
  
             19  would be specialists in any case be the electric, 
  
             20  pipefitters, I think -- 
  
             21            MRS. ROSS:  I am thinking just in case of 
  
             22  an emergency, you know how kids get into things 
  
             23  just in case of an emergency, names, numbers posted 
  
             24  somewhere with some sign on the outside of the 
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              1  fencing or something of that nature. 
  
              2            MR. MILNE:  I think you folks who are 
  
              3  neighbors, you will know who is running it, who is 
  
              4  doing the operations and maintenance, I'm not sure 
  
              5  that is required for the permit, we don't know who 
  
              6  the operator would be yet because we hire people 
  
              7  who operate plants to do this for us, we are not 
  
              8  operators ourselves so I can't answer the question 
  
              9  tonight as to who you contact but I think common 
  
             10  sense would say and our intent would be to make 
  
             11  sure that you folks would know who to talk to. 
  
             12            MR. SELTZER:  Let me just add to that, I 
  
             13  never thought about that myself, we have to issue 
  
             14  an operating permit before they can run and I don't 
  
             15  know whether or not there will be a hearing on 
  
             16  issuance of the operating permit. 
  
             17            MR. ROMAINE:  Actually the operating 
  
             18  permit is issued after they have run for their 
  
             19  trial period of operation.  After this facility is 
  
             20  built it must perform emission testing to 
  
             21  demonstrate that the turbines can comply with the 
  
             22  applicable emission limitations and other 
  
             23  requirements that are put into this permit.  Only 
  
             24  after they have done those performance tests do 
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              1  they actually get their operating permit.  This 
  
              2  would be a major facility for purposes of an 
  
              3  operating permit.  Before we would issue an 
  
              4  operating permit, there would be another public 
  
              5  comment period, there would certainly be an 
  
              6  opportunity for a public hearing if there was 
  
              7  interest in the facility at that point. 
  
              8             MR. SELTZER:  It's not for me to say 
  
              9  what comments people should make but it may be a 
  
             10  good idea for somebody to request some signs 
  
             11  somewhere put on because I assume this will be 
  
             12  somewhat of a secured facility, have a sign or a 
  
             13  number, 800 number, something like that where 
  
             14  somebody can be contacted in case of an emergency 
  
             15  and the agency may or may not agree with that 
  
             16  recommendation if it's made. 
  
             17            MR. DONOHOE:  One other method that has 
  
             18  worked in a lot of industrial facilities around the 
  
             19  country is using the local law enforcement if you 
  
             20  know of things, if you have a vandalism situation, 
  
             21  contact either local police or sheriff and they 
  
             22  will have information about the facility operation 
  
             23  as well so there is a couple different ways to get 
  
             24  at that and having a method for one facility is 
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              1  different than what you do for most of the 
  
              2  community. 
  
              3            MR. SELTZER:  That includes the EPA 
  
              4  because you can always contact the EPA if there is 
  
              5  a problem.  Are there any other questions or 
  
              6  comments? 
  
              7            MR. BROWNING:  When the initial 
  
              8  construction is done, like I said I own property 
  
              9  just adjoining the Wall property, there is a water 
  
             10  problem in the property, water is coming off his 
  
             11  farm coming off the substation, I guess they got 
  
             12  plastic down and rock under that but the area that 
  
             13  catches water is pretty significant, it comes right 
  
             14  off down on Wall and right off our farm.  Whenever 
  
             15  they start construction I would like to be able to 
  
             16  talk to someone see what could be done to correct 
  
             17  that problem, it needs to be addressed, you guys 
  
             18  come and pour concrete, it's going to be worse, 
  
             19  might as well have the water going in the right 
  
             20  direction right off the bat rather than making 
  
             21  things worse than what they already are. 
  
             22            MR. WOOLARD:  Jack Woolard of West 
  
             23  Frankfort, normally whenever the businesses and 
  
             24  different ones, we have them to report in to the 
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              1  city hall any new business or anyone like this and 
  
              2  when you call 911, we have the emergency numbers 
  
              3  here that we can -- people to contact would be a 
  
              4  pretty simple operation to do, basically what he 
  
              5  was saying here if the city or county one would 
  
              6  have those numbers, they would make the contact. 
  
              7            MR. SELTZER:  Thank you, are there any 
  
              8  other comments or questions?  I want to thank you 
  
              9  all for your participation.  The applicants have 
  
             10  been extremely cooperative tonight and interesting 
  
             11  questions from the audience, it's been a small 
  
             12  hearing, usually I run them a little more strict 
  
             13  than this where people can't just chime in the way 
  
             14  we did tonight but it was very nice, do this with a 
  
             15  small group of people like this.  I want to comment 
  
             16  again that the record in this matter will stay open 
  
             17  till July 21 of this year so if you think of 
  
             18  anything else you wish to make any other comments, 
  
             19  you can do so in writing then those comments as 
  
             20  long as they are postmarked by the 21st of this 
  
             21  month will have to be addressed in the written 
  
             22  summation that the agency will prepare.  You will 
  
             23  all receive a copy of that written summation so 
  
             24  long as we have your address. 
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              1            MR. BROWNING:  How do you anticipate 
  
              2  things going along now, I mean as far as you guys 
  
              3  start, kind of give us an idea of what is going to 
  
              4  be taking place over the period of time from start 
  
              5  to construction. 
  
              6            MR. MILNE:  We think the first activity 
  
              7  you would see in the area is the utility, Ameron 
  
              8  making upgrades to the substation.  They may begin 
  
              9  to do that before we begin construction, we don't 
  
             10  think that if we go ahead with the June 2003 start 
  
             11  date, you probably wouldn't see any activity on the 
  
             12  plant site itself until the winter of 2002, 
  
             13  beginning of 2003. 
  
             14            MR. BROWNING:  So you are talking 2003 
  
             15  for it to start? 
  
             16            MR. MILNE:  That's correct, approximately 
  
             17  June 1, 2003. 
  
             18            MRS. ROSS:  When will the different 
  
             19  construction for the different residents, do you 
  
             20  have some idea for the pipeline? 
  
             21            MR. MILNE:  The pipeline CMS Trunkline 
  
             22  who owns the major pipelines is about five miles 
  
             23  from the plant so we are going to -- correct that 
  
             24  statement, the construction of that pipeline would 
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              1  take 9 to 12 months beyond that, I don't have a 
  
              2  more detailed construction scheduled from them at 
  
              3  this point so it's logical to assume you might see 
  
              4  them begin activity on the pipeline a year from now 
  
              5  roughly. 
  
              6            MRS. ROSS:  Are they the ones that is 
  
              7  doing the contract with each individual residents? 
  
              8            MR. MILNE:  No, that's us, we are 
  
              9  obtaining right of way but the actual building of 
  
             10  the line the pipeline company. 
  
             11            MRS. ROSS:  Can we talk to you after the 
  
             12  hearing about that? 
  
             13            MR. MILNE:  Sure. 
  
             14            MR. SELTZER:  I want to thank you all for 
  
             15  your participation and have a safe evening. 
  
             16 
  
             17                       * * * * 
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